Minutes of Meeting CONWAY BOARD OF SELECTMEN March 1, 2021

The Selectmen's Meeting convened at 8:06 pm in the Kennett High School Gymnasium with the following present: C. David Weathers, Mary Carey Seavey, Carl Thibodeau, John Colbath, Steven Porter, Town Manager Thomas Holmes, and Executive Secretary, Krista Day.

VOTING ON AMENDED WARRANT ARTICLES

Mr. Colbath moved, seconded by Mr. Thibodeau, to recommend the follow warrant article:

<u>ARTICLE 7</u>: (Operating budget) Shall the Town raise and appropriate as an OPERATING BUDGET, not including appropriations by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on the budget posted with the Warrant for the purposes set forth therein, Twelve Million, Ninety-Two Thousand, Eighty Dollars (\$12,092,080). Should this article be defeated the default budget shall be Eleven Million, Eight Hundred, Eighty Thousand, Three Hundred, Fifty-Three Dollars (\$11,880,353), which is the same as the last years, with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town of Conway or by law, or the governing body may hold one special meeting in accordance with RSA 40:13 X and XVI, to take up the issue of a revised operating budget only. NOTE: This operating budget warrant article does not include appropriation contained in ANY other warrant article.

The motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Colbath moved, seconded by Mr. Porter, to recommend that the following warrant article:

<u>ARTICLE 23:</u> (Non-Monetary) To see if the Town will establish a NOISE ORDINANCE to assist regulatory officials and law enforcement when responding to noise complaints and help ensure that Conway residents are able to enjoy the quiet and peaceful enjoyment of their property. The full text of the ordinance is available at the Town offices and on the Town website.

The motion carried unanimously.

VOTING ON CHANGES TO THE NOISE ORDINANCE

Mr. Colbath moved, seconded by Ms. Seavey, to recommend the changes to the proposed noise ordinance as follows:

CHAPTER 97 NOISE [HISTORY: Adopted by the Town of Conway April 13, 2021] § 97-1 PURPOSE AND INTENT

Because the creation and/or maintenance of loud, unusual or other unnecessary noise, or noises which will annoy and disturb within the Town of Conway, which are prolonged, unusual and unnatural in their time, place and use, detrimentally affect public health, comfort, convenience,

safety, welfare and prosperity of Town citizens, the Town ordains it necessary and appropriate to enact the following provisions and prohibitions.

§ 97-2 AUTHORITY

This chapter is enacted by the Town of Conway pursuant to the authority granted by the New Hampshire Legislature as stipulated in RSA 31:39, I. (n), as amended.

§97-3 VEHICLE NOISE

No person shall operate any vehicle on any street so as to make any loud, unusual or other unnecessary noise as hereinafter defined.

§ 97-4 DEFINITIONS

As used in this Chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

ANNOY - To disturb or irritate, especially by continued or repeated acts; to bother with unpleasant deeds; To do something to upset or anger someone.

DISTURB - the unsettling of proper order in a public space, or the unsettling of proper order heard from a private place, through one's actions. This can include creating loud noise by fighting or challenging to fight, disturbing others by loud and unreasonable noise, or using offensive words or insults likely to incite violence.

LOUD, UNUSUAL OR OTHER UNNECESSARY NOISE -- Includes any noise occasioned by any one (1) or more of the following actions of the operator of any vehicle:

A. Misuse of power exceeding tire traction limits in acceleration, sometimes known as "laying down rubber" or "peeling rubber."

B. Misuse of braking power exceeding tire traction limits in deceleration where there is no emergency.

C. Rapid acceleration by means of quick upshifting of transmission gears with either a clutch and manual transmission or an automatic transmission.

D. Rapid deceleration by means of quick downshifting of transmission gears with either a clutch and manual transmission or an automatic transmission.

E. Racing of engines by manipulation of the accelerator, gas pedal, carburetor or gear selection, whether the vehicle is either in motion or standing still.

F. The blowing of any horn except as a warning signal or the use of any other noisemaking device, whether the vehicle is either in motion or standing still.

STREET -- Includes a crosswalk, intersecting way or other public highway, all as defined by RSA Chapter 259, as amended.

VEHICLE -- Includes a bus, highway building equipment, motorcycle, motor truck, motor vehicle, semitrailer, sidecar, tractor, trailer or other vehicle, all as defined by RSA Chapter 259, as amended.

§ 97-5 VIOLATIONS and PENALTIES.

Any person found in violation of this chapter shall be guilty of a violation and may be fined in an amount set from time to time by the Board of Selectmen, with such fines not exceeding \$1,000 to inure to the general budget of the Town per RSA 31:39, III.

§ 97-6 OTHER NOISE

A. Noise Restricted.

In accordance with the concepts set forth below, it shall be unlawful for any person to make, continue or cause to be made or continued any excessive, or loud, unusual or other unnecessary noise, or any noise which either annoys, disturbs, injures or is likely to endanger the comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of others within the town limits. For the purpose of this section, persons shall include the owner, tenant, or other person in control of a private residence who permits or allows guests to engage in loud or unreasonable noises that can be heard in a public or

other private place or who fail to take the necessary steps and precautions to prevent guests or other persons on the property from engaging in conduct that creates loud and unreasonable noises including, but not limited to the operation, playing, or using of any audio equipment, sound amplifier or other device which reproduces or amplifies sound.

B. Prohibited Noise/Time Restrictions.

(1) Between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., created by loading, unloading, opening, closing or otherwise handling boxes, crates, containers, building materials, trash cans, dumpsters or similar objects.

(2) Between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. created by:

(a) The operation or use of construction vehicles, to include but not be limited to bulldozers, graders, dump trucks, backhoes, earthmoving equipment, front-end loaders and log skidders.

(b) The operation or use of tools or construction equipment, to include but not be limited to cement mixers, hammers, staple or nail guns, power tools (i.e., saws, drills, grinders and sanders), chain saws, lawn mowers, electric hedge trimmers, lawn edgers and jackhammers.

(c) The operation or use of agricultural equipment, to include but not be limited to tedders, balers and tractors.

(3) Engaging in conduct that creates loud and unreasonable noises including, but not limited to the operation, playing, or using of any audio equipment, sound amplifier or other device which reproduces or amplifies sound.

(4) Evidence of a specific complaint or complainant is not necessary to establish a violation of this ordinance.

§ 97-7 EXEMPTIONS

The following uses and activities shall be exempt from noise level regulations:

A. Noise of safety signals, warning devices and emergency pressure-relief valves.

B. Noises resulting from any authorized vehicle when responding to an emergency call or acting in time of emergency.

C. Noises resulting from emergency maintenance work as performed by the town, by the state or by public utility companies, to include snow-removal operations.

D. Municipal maintenance work where the abutters to the work site have been given prior notice of the project.

E. Any other noise resulting from activities of a temporary duration permitted by law and for which a license or permit therefor has been granted by the town.

F. Vehicles, tools and equipment, except during time periods of their prohibited use.

G. Snowblowers and other types of private or commercial snow-removal operations.

H. Parades and public gatherings for which the Town of Conway has issued a permit.

I. Bells, chimes or carillons while being used for religious purposes or in conjunction with religious services and those bells, chimes or carillons that are presently installed and in use for any purpose. § 97-8 APPLICATION.

Application for a permit for relief from the noise level designated in this Article on the basis of undue hardship may be made to the Town of Conway. Any permit granted by the Town shall set forth all conditions pertaining to the specified noise and a reasonable time limit for its abatement. § 97-9 VALIDITY

If any section or part of a section or paragraph of this Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional, said declaration shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or sections, or part of a section or paragraph of this Ordinance unless the purposes of this Ordinance cannot be accomplished in the absence of the invalidated provision. § 97-10 EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage.

The motion carried unanimously.

The consensus of the Board was that they would remove the entire wording of the noise ordinance from the ballot, but have it available at Town Hall and on the website.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Holmes noted that they would be discussing at a future meeting the plan for a controlled burn of 210 acres behind Cedar Creek.

ADJOURN

At 8:09 pm, Mr. Colbath moved, seconded by Mr. Thibodeau, to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Krista Day Executive Secretary